#### MINUTES

# MONTANA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 54th LEGISLATURE - REGULAR SESSION

#### COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY

Call to Order: By CHAIRMAN BOB CLARK, on February 9, 1995, at 7:00 AM.

#### ROLL CALL

#### Members Present:

Rep. Robert C. Clark, Chairman (R)

Rep. Shiell Anderson, Vice Chairman (Majority) (R)

Rep. Diana E. Wyatt, Vice Chairman (Minority) (D)

Rep. Chris Ahner (R)

Rep. Ellen Bergman (R)

Rep. William E. Boharski (R)

Rep. Bill Carey (D)

Rep. Aubyn A. Curtiss (R)

Rep. Duane Grimes (R)

Rep. Joan Hurdle (D)

Rep. Deb Kottel (D)

Rep. Linda McCulloch (D)

Rep. Daniel W. McGee (R)

Rep. Brad Molnar (R)

Rep. Debbie Shea (D)

Rep. Liz Smith (R)

Rep. Loren L. Soft (R)

Rep. Bill Tash (R)

Rep. Cliff Trexler (R)

Members Excused: NONE

Members Absent: NONE

Staff Present: John MacMaster, Legislative Council

Joanne Gunderson, Committee Secretary

Please Note: These are summary minutes. Testimony and

discussion are paraphrased and condensed.

Committee Business Summary:

Hearing: HB 186, HB 366, HB 371, HB 429

Executive Action: HB 55 DO PASS AS AMENDED

HB 296 DO PASS

#### EXECUTIVE ACTION ON HB 55

Motion: REP. BRAD MOLNAR MOVED HB 55 DO PASS.

Motion: REP. MOLNAR MOVED TO AMEND HB 55 ON PAGE 2, LINES 6 THROUGH 8 BY STRIKING "\$500" THROUGH "PAY," INSERTING "\$100" AND FOLLOWING "WHO" ON LINE 11 INSERTING "KNOWINGLY."

<u>Discussion</u>: REP. JOAN HURDLE spoke against the amendments on the basis of those situations where the employer and employee might collaborate to bypass the law.

REP. MOLNAR explained the consequences of violations which would preclude such situations.

<u>Vote</u>: The motion carried 15 - 1, REP. HURDLE voted no. (REPS. ANDERSON, AHNER and BERGMAN were absent at the time of the vote.)

Motion: REP. MOLNAR MOVED HB 55 DO PASS AS AMENDED.

<u>Discussion</u>: REP. LIZ SMITH recommended that those who would be present at the next legislative session consider a more positive approach to solving this situation such as a tax credit for those who cooperate in hiring and paying

<u>Vote</u>: The motion carried 15 - 4, REPS. MC GEE, BOHARSKI, CLARK and BERGMAN voted no. (REP. AHNER voted by proxy.)

#### EXECUTIVE ACTION ON HB 296

Motion: REP. MOLNAR MOVED HB 296 DO PASS.

<u>Discussion</u>: REP. WILLIAM BOHARSKI recalled that the Department of Justice was going to submit information to the committee. That information had been supplied to REP. DUANE GRIMES who presented it to the committee. In summary the report shows there are mixed reviews from other states' experiences with this legislation, it really doesn't seem to hurt the process, but does not go quite as far as the proponents would like. Part of the study involved comparisons between different types of offenses showing how the fully informed jury affected the outcomes. In cases where the jury could sympathize with the defendant such as in DUI cases, the sentences were somewhat less; in those in which they could not sympathize, they hedged toward stiffer sentences.

REP. SHIELL ANDERSON asked the committee to resist this bill. He felt the grounds for it were nebulous when the proponents quoted from an old, old Webster's dictionary definition as a basis for a fully informed jury. He was going to vote against it also because of the potential for extension of time for trials. From a victim's rights perspective, he felt it had the potential for inequitable settlement because of jury sympathy. He said it could also work the other way. Jurors on the list have no

ongoing accountability to society having been simply selected from voter registration roles. His perception was that the proponents were bringing this legislation because they were upset with the outcome of a particular trial and felt Montana law shouldn't be changed because of that motivation.

- REP. AUBYN CURTISS thought that the committee should not be considering the cost of justice. Testimony was that several states' constitutions contain this language and that 20 other states have this language in their statutes. She suggested that the sponsor be asked how it is working in other states. The committee objected. She felt one of the most important things to Americans was the entitlement to good juries and that they should not be sold short. Oftentimes the interests of the system aren't always the interests of the individual, she said. She strongly supported the bill.
- REP. BILL CAREY agreed with REP. ANDERSON. He asked that the proponents address the question disturbing him; i.e., that it was suggested that laws which are being passed would become suggested rules of conduct rather than laws.
- REP. GRIMES spent some time as a neutral party studying it and did not find a danger but rather an opportunity to give some rights back to the average citizen. He felt the answer to the question was that juries are not picked by happenstance; they are thoroughly reviewed by both sides of the case. He did not believe this was saying the jurors could overturn laws, but that they had the right to see if that particular law applied to the case. He felt citizens are intelligent enough to deliberate the facts and deliberate the consequences of applying the law.
- REP. BILL TASH said he had a lot of faith in due process especially because of the way they are instructed. But he spoke against this bill. He thought it was a burden on juries to expect them to reach their decisions without all the information and resources they would need. He said too often jury and court decisions are being made not necessarily on what is right or wrong, but on technicalities and legal correctness.
- REP. SMITH asked if there was any way to simplify this by offering more information. She said it is not the people who rule, but rather the interpretations of the law which rules by expertise. Though this expertise is valued, she believed there needs to be a checkmate (sic) and they need the information to provide that balance.
- REP. DIANA WYATT called the committee's attention to line 22 on page 1, to see the potential of an increase in hung juries. Though the intention is valid and supporting of the jury system as it is desired to work, she did not believe it would work that way.

REP. MOLNAR said the purpose of the bill was being overlooked. The jury has the right, but the question before the committee was, "Are we going to tell them that they have it?" He compared that to a defendant being informed of his full rights to an attorney or to remain silent for instance. He wanted to know how far they would go to see that the criminal had every right explained; and frankly thought the jury had the same right to be informed. It was admitted in testimony that people carry their prejudices with them and the judge does not discharge them by saying they can't consider certain points. Additionally the law is quite often being applied by the interpretation of a previous judge. If the jury does not want to find a person guilty by reason of the abusive interpretation of a law, they have a right to do that. The purpose is to give the jury the full knowledge of their rights as is given the criminal.

REP. BOHARSKI remembered asking the question during testimony if a juror found that they had the right to judge the law as not applying to a case and the result was a hung jury, would there be any remedy. He remembered Mr. Connor answering, "No." Evidence from other states was that this had not produced highly negative results and was not something to be afraid of. So his question was why would they not inform the jury they have the right to do it.

REP. DEB KOTTEL agreed that juries have the right to see how the law applies to the facts. But she said they do not have a right to determine the law itself. She said that the application in other states through jury instruction is to be informed that they have the duty to apply law to fact. They may decide that the facts don't fit under the law. 'She said that is what the jury should do and what Webster was defining but not to rule on constitutionality and other issues. She agreed with REP. WYATT in asking why, in a representative democracy, would they allow people to vote them in, allow 150 people to reach consensus on whether a law is good, allow a governor to execute that law and then let the tyranny of one person override the wishes of the majority of the society.

REP. DANIEL MC GEE had done a lot of reading about what the founding fathers had said about what a jury meant and was convinced that they had in mind that a jury was the last line of defense against an unjust law. In the legislative process there will be some laws which are unconstitutional or have other flaws. From evidence he had examined, he determined that the jury has the right to judge the law. His experience as foreman on two criminal juries was that he was informed that he could not judge the law but could only judge the evidence. He disagreed with it and though it could create some problems, he felt it could eliminate someone from being criminally charged and prosecuted who was innocent. He said he would support the bill.

REP. CLIFF TREXLER asked REP. ANDERSON if this would affect jury selection.

- REP. ANDERSON said the problem was subjective and would affect jury selection. He described the voir dire portion of the trial, which means to tell the truth, wherein the defense attorney will try to find at least one juror who will be morally or circumstantially sympathetic. He felt that this would extend the process by appealing to even more aspects of the juror's potentially sympathetic leanings.
- REP. GRIMES read a portion from a Maryland law review which revealed that most support the nullification instruction even if they don't support the theory. It said that the impact on juries had been marginal. The conclusion of the law review was that the traditional deference to the judge's authority was not seriously if at all diminished. He did not believe it should affect or threaten the legislature. He reiterated his faith in the citizens to exercise the latitude.
- **REP. WYATT** interpreted what was read differently. She felt it was saying that judges did it, but did not necessarily agree with it.
- REP. SMITH believed that the interpretation of the law was in control of the society and citizens. She echoed and restated her concerns. She felt there was an imbalance which could be helped by having well-informed juries.
- REP. LINDA MC CULLOCH voiced her concern with this bill that juries would be encouraged to use their prejudices. She felt this tied into the favored-son philosophy and would encourage inconsistency in law.
- REP. ANDERSON said there were two sides of the argument that the jury has the right to determine the law. The right they currently have is to say they can't decide. But he did not think they had the right to bend the law to suit the case. He felt they would have protracted debates by attorneys over the constitutionality of the law during trials. He felt that being tough on law was contrary to setting up a situation where deadlocked juries would result.
- REP. BOHARSKI asked, "Can we pass a law that will have this sort of an impact on an individual and stay within the confines of the Constitution. We are making a proactive statute in order to put some sort of government bind on an individual, that's not necessarily bad. That's good, that's what we are hired to do. What this bill would allow the jury to do is not the same thing, it is the opposite. It is that they would be able to say, 'In this case, we do not want it to apply.'" He used the Brady law disputes and how those are being argued and dealt with by legislatures as examples to prove his point.
- REP. MC GEE testified of a case with the committee to show that it could work both ways.

<u>Vote</u>: The DO PASS motion on HB 296 carried 11-8 by roll call

vote.

{Tape: 1; Side: B}

#### **HEARING ON HB 429**

#### Opening Statement by Sponsor:

REP. BRAD MOLNAR, HD 22, offered HB 429 for the committee's consideration. He stated that the bill was written by a youth court judge from Missoula. The bill would provide for the opening of youth court records to the public. Many of the protections afforded youth are retained under this bill. The victims of juvenile perpetrators would be kept informed of the disposition of the cases involving them. Though there is no retribution allowed for juvenile offenders, the publication of their offenses would provide protection for the victims and general public as well as apply pressure on the youth toward reformation

#### Proponents' Testimony:

Charles Walk, Executive Director, Montana Newspaper Association, supported HB 429 which would revise the youth court confidentiality provision. They believed this bill adhered to the criteria they follow in opening more information to public business and interest while providing reasonable protection for privacy consideration.

Mike Voeller, Lee Newspapers of Montana, supported and echoed the previous testimony. He submitted written testimony. EXHIBIT 1

#### Opponents' Testimony:

Mary Ellerd, Executive Secretary, Montana Juvenile Probation Officers Association, recommended that, because of their complexity, the revisions in this bill be included in an all encompassing study of the youth court act such as proposed in HB 240.

Richard Meeker, Chief Juvenile Probation Officer, First Judicial District, opposed the bill and explained his specific concerns throughout the bill. To him the bill indicated that there would be no confidentiality at all. In particular he addressed those who are in the youth-in-need-of-supervision category. Many of the offenses charged in that category would not be violations if the person were over 18 or 21, such as truancy, running away, etc. Many times these children come from dysfunctional backgrounds of neglect or abuse. The bill indicated that the social background would not be released to the public, but the public would be permitted to attend the hearing where the information could be disseminated to the court and the public.

Often with children in this category, they deal with competing interests between parent and child. This bill would provide that a parent or attorney could request a jury trial. It might not be in the best interests of the child to hold a jury trial in which the general public would again be privy to information they do not need to know and that could be contrary to the best interests of the child. He had no problem with the concept of notification of the victims, but his concern did involve funding to accomplish it as fully as was being potentially mandated.

He gave the history of the responsibilities and functions of Managing Resources Montana (MRM). He felt that the backgrounds of many of the children they serve should not become public knowledge.

#### Questions From Committee Members and Responses:

- REP. ELLEN BERGMAN asked if this bill wasn't concerned with reporting crime and publication of the names of those committing those crimes.
- Mr. Meeker said the bill would provide for opening the records on offenses such as runaways which are not technically crimes.
- REP. BERGMAN compared it with handling of adult background information when a crime is reported.
- Mr. Meeker said that defense attorneys in juvenile cases use the background information to present cause for the behavior, while in adult cases that is not a factor.
- REP. BERGMAN asked if it had the effect of protecting the parents.
- Mr. Meeker felt it would protect the parents as well as the youth. What they have done may not be totally illegal.
- REP. LOREN SOFT noted that Mr. Meeker had differentiated between youths in need of supervision and the juvenile delinquent. He asked if the section on youths in need of supervision could be removed.
- REP. MOLNAR said the intent was for the court to focus on what is known; i.e. the crime, and to overlook the unproven allegations of child abuse or neglect, keeping those confidential. He felt that a youth in need of supervision quite often will have other problems though they may not be charged beyond a status offense. Often they run because they do not want to obey their parents and not because they are being abused or neglected though they may allege such a problem as the cause.
- REP. TASH asked if media announcements would help in the notification-of-victims process.

- Mr. Meeker responded that there is existing statute to cover notification of media sources and this bill did not increase that, but it did break it down to a different category of children. In his view, this category did include children who are themselves victims and it would be unfruitful to expose their problems to the public through the press. He suggested as a remedy for the issue eliminating the particular section which allows for a substitute petition (youth in need of supervision) for a youth who had committed a felony offense.
- **REP. HURDLE** reflected on the testimony which was that 80% of the youths in need of supervision are neglected or abused. She asked if there were cases where this is being kept secret and thus protecting the parents who are committing the neglect or abuse.
- Mr. Meeker said many of the children in this category are well known in the system. Though he agreed parents should be held accountable, he thought that they needed to consider any benefit to the child or any reasonable benefit to the public to know what the background of the child has been. He had examples where this information had been used to exploit the situation and increase the dysfunction. On the other hand, withholding it has been beneficial in future reconciliation with the parents and restoration of individuals' lives.
- REP. HURDLE asked if it didn't serve to protect those who hadn't reformed.
- Mr. Meeker said, "Without a doubt, without a doubt, but again the question I would have is what purpose does it give to the public to know that this person is neglecting the child, who is still alcoholic, who still uses drugs or alcohol, who still abuses the child. What purpose does it do the public." If the public would respond to help the children, he felt it would make sense; but he did not think they would respond.
- REP. HURDLE wondered if the reason the public has become immune to it is that the information is so objective, while the public might feel differently if they knew who it was.
- Mr. Meeker said it was a philosophical question and did not serve the public well to know.
- REP. CHRIS AHNER asked if it would not be a benefit to the people involved to be exposed and to admit their wrongdoing. She based that on AA principles.
- Mr. Meeker said that his experience was that alcoholics admit their problem in certain places where they are accepted and where the acceptance would provide incentive. He did not think the general public is an AA meeting.

- REP. AHNER thought that these people who have transformed their lives would benefit the lives of others as encouragement to do the same.
- Mr. Meeker did not know whether the people he knew of would want to tell their story in public. Though their stories might inspire the public, the child involved still is scarred and how would that affect the child.
- **REP. AHNER** wondered if since the whole gist of the bill was in reporting the crime and not exposing the background, they shouldn't be held accountable for what they have done. She wanted to know if it had a place in helping to stop the behavior.
- Mr. Meeker said many of the kids in that category have not actually committed a crime, but rather a status offense. He said that the system does hold youths in need of supervision accountable for their actions and he explained with examples how that is done. He maintained that putting their names in the paper was a questionable method for holding them accountable.
- REP. AHNER asked for clarification of the style of accountability that is required.
- Mr. Meeker gave a scenario example of what that would mean.
- **REP. CAREY** asked if he understood the way the bill was written the court would not have discretion to keep some of the information private.
- REP. MOLNAR said that the court shall allow them to be public and it would up to someone else to disseminate. The press would not be mandated that they must publish the information, but it would be available. The protections included would keep the information focused on the crime.
- **REP. CAREY** asked why the sponsors would not want to give the court some discretion in deciding whether some information could be made public.
- REP. MOLNAR said he and the judge had disagreed in the handling of this issue and this drafting reflected the judge's preference.
- REP. SOFT asked if Mr. Meeker thought public disclosure might help in some cases.
- Mr. Meeker reiterated that his concern was for some of the children who would not receive any therapeutic benefit from it.
- **REP. SOFT** asked if he would agree that there is no fine line in determining which child is purely one in need of supervision and solely a delinquent in behavior.
- Mr. Meeker agreed.

CHAIRMAN CLARK asked if the information could still be sealed under 41-5-604, MCA.

Mr. Meeker said it could at a certain age. He was concerned that the hearings would be open. Social summaries and psychological reports are sealed, but in the hearings with the public permitted to be there the same information could come out even though it would be in written form.

CHAIRMAN CLARK asked if information concerning a victim's stolen property is given to the victim. He cited current law which says if the court says it cannot be given, that information must be withheld.

Mr. Meeker replied that under the Youth Court Act, if the victim acknowledges his involvement in the crime, the identity of the suspect can be released to the victim. This provides the victim recourse for reimbursement for the loss. Though they can release the name of the suspect and their parents, not all information can be released.

CHAIRMAN CLARK asked if Mr. Meeker was aware of a recent case which was alluded to in testimony. Mr. Meeker was not familiar with it.

REP. HURDLE asked Mr. Walk if he interviewed a victim who had been given the name of the perpetrator, could he then publish the name of the perpetrator.

Mr. Walk said it depended on the disposition of the case according to the youth court judge. The missing element would be the discretionary powers built into the Youth Court Act for the judge. He felt that HB 240 was important for that reason.

REP. HURDLE re-asked the question.

Mr. Walk said he believed he could release the name of the suspect after interviewing the victim, but the prudent newspaper would check with the probation officer or with the youth court judge to determine the disposition of the case.

#### Closing by Sponsor:

REP. MOLNAR closed by challenging points made by the opponents of HB 429. He believed that the time for studies had passed and that the current Youth Court Act needs drastic adjustments. He reiterated his arguments for the changes which would be enacted through the passage of this bill. The intent of the bill was to provide immediate and enforceable consequences for offenses committed by youth. He addressed the issue of youths alleging abuse in cases where the youth needed restraint to control behavior which would harm himself or another.

{Tape: 2; Side: A}

CHAIRMAN CLARK relinquished the chair to VICE CHAIR ANDERSON.

#### **HEARING ON HB 371**

#### Opening Statement by Sponsor:

REP. LIZ SMITH, HD 56, opened with her remarks on HB 371 which increased the penalty for harming or killing a police dog and provide restitution by the offender to the law enforcement agency. She distributed a letter as support for the bill and also distributed suggested amendments. EXHIBITS 2 and 3

#### <u>Proponents'</u> Testimony:

Roy Brock, Jr., Powell County Sheriff's Department, had requested this bill be introduced because he felt these dogs used in law enforcement are underprotected by current law. He felt that this bill would not only enhance the protection, but also their upkeep which is often paid out-of-pocket by those using them in service for law enforcement. He reviewed the uses of the canine services. He showed a video to the committee to reinforce his support of the bill.

CHAIRMAN CLARK resumed the chair.

Paul Craft, Dillon Police Department, shared an incident which illustrated the need for this legislation.

Beth Baker, Department of Justice, gave supporting remarks and talked about the use of a dog in investigation of arson for the state. She urged support of the bill and the amendments.

EXHIBIT 4

#### Opponents' Testimony:

None

#### Questions From Committee Members and Responses:

REP. BERGMAN asked why a bill was needed to protect a police dog.

REP. SMITH said this bill would increase and expand the penalty as well as request restitution. There is a law presently in place which only provides for their protection while under supervision. She cited various examples of the expense in training and maintaining these dogs and their value in law enforcement and search and rescue situations.

{Tape: 2; Side: A; Approx. Counter 20.5.}

REP. MOLNAR agreed with the intent of the bill, but wondered if it would not be wise to lower the fine and not to exceed a one-

year sentence in the county jail for the offense so it would be treated as a misdemeanor.

- REP. SMITH said she would oppose treating it as a misdemeanor and stated the need to carry a strong message that it would be a felony because of the value of the animals. She cited increase of staff to replace the animal as well as the time invested in training and its upkeep.
- REP. MOLNAR'S concern in the level of punishment called for in the bill was that the prison is overcrowded now and this would not be enforceable for that reason.
- **REP. SMITH** suggested that they could delete the words, "state prison," and change it to "the Department of Corrections may sentence appropriately." She would reject the reduction in the fine.
- REP. TASH supported the legislation, but said penalties on line 18 should reflect the value of the dog rather than the ability of the offender to pay.
- REP. SMITH said she tended to agree.

CHAIRMAN CLARK asked how they could address the use of bloodhounds in search and rescue which might extend to their use in law enforcement.

**REP. SMITH** felt the amendments attempted to address that. She was open to adding language to cover those possibilities.

#### Closing by Sponsor:

REP. SMITH felt this bill would help address the increased demands on law enforcement agencies and to increase their effectiveness.

#### **HEARING ON HB 186**

#### Opening Statement by Sponsor:

REP. BETTY LOU KASTEN, HD 99, related that HB 186 would be a general revision of laws relating to child protection services. She reviewed with the committee the provisions of each section of the bill. She said if they understood the changes in HB 186, the committee would understand HB 366. The two were companion bills.

#### Proponents' Testimony:

Hank Hudson, Director, Department of Family Services (DFS), spoke in favor of both HB 186 and HB 366 as being bills requested by DFS. He described the purpose of the bills and the response to needs of the department as well as the people they serve. They

were attempting to strike a balance in the need to protect confidentiality of the clients.

Ann Gilke, Staff Attorney, DFS, provided the committee with written testimony and proposed amendments to HB 186. EXHIBIT 5 She intended to testify for the companion bill, HB 366, at this time as well, which she did in part. She expanded on the sponsor's explanation of the bill section by section as well as the proposed amendments.

{Tape: 2; Side: A; Approx. Counter: 44; Comments: The witness provided written information for both HB 186 and HB 366 at this time, the secretary has separated the items pertinent to each bill.}

Mary Alice Cook, Advocates for Montana's Children, strongly supported HB 186.

Laurie Koutnik, Executive Director, Christian Coalition of Montana, found this bill to especially address the issues most effectively and directly covering the concerns their organization has. They supported the amendments.

#### Opponents' Testimony:

Monte Beck, Bozeman Attorney, objected to a portion of the bill at page 10 which granted immunity to department employees. He said the ramification would be to allow DFS employees to be totally and completely unaccountable and not responsible for any wrongful or incompetent actions they might take in their attempt to protect children. He provided written documents from a court case and testified regarding the case to substantiate his objection. EXHIBITS 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10

{Tape: 2; Side: B}

Russell Hill, Montana Trial Lawyers Association (MTLA), focused his opposition on the immunity provision on page 10 and on the first amendment. He suspected that the committee might be confused about the significance of the amendment. He referred to 41-3-202, MCA, which he urged the committee to read and to ask themselves what the point would be for one section of law of this legislature to impose duties of thorough investigation and affirmative and aggressive duties in instances of child abuse and then in another section immunize them.

#### Questions From Committee Members and Responses:

REP. SOFT assumed the language on line 30 would cover evidence of maliciousness or bad faith actions on the part of the employees.

Mr. Beck said those would be hard to prove. The standard should be negligence and incompetence.

REP. SOFT asked how this could be corrected.

- Mr. Beck directed the committee to page 10, line 27 and recommended that they list the people to whom immunity would be granted and to remove police officers and department employees (he thought county attorneys would already be immune) from that list. He felt doctors and teachers would be among those who would be immune.
- REP. SOFT asked Ms. Gilke's response to the above recommendation and also for her to tell the committee what her rationale was in listing those people.
- Ms. Gilke pointed out from her testimony that the immunity section was disclosed. They were reflecting on this list what is already in law under 41-3-202, MCA. She felt that if they took out the amendment it would include those same people since they are authorized under that section of current code to investigate. The department would be more comfortable with going back to the original statute than listing them individually.
- **REP. SOFT** asked if **Mr. Beck's** testimony had merit in regard to granting immunity in such a case as he presented during testimony.
- Ms. Gilke said the department is in the position of defending their actions in placing that child in the foster home where she received abuse and the department was not granted immunity. Immunity is limited to protecting people involved in the investigation. Department employees, police officers and county attorneys need to have the protection from being sued every time they investigate allegations of child abuse.
- REP. SOFT asked if there was a way to re-write it to grant the immunity so that it would be more clear.
- Ms. Gilke said she would not have an answer without reflecting on it and would be willing to work with the committee on it.
- **REP. SOFT** offered a suggestion at the top of page 11 and **Ms. Gilke** agreed that might be the solution to refer to gross negligence.
- REP. HURDLE referred to the reporting in section 10 and asked if it applied after conviction.
- Ms. Gilke said they were civil laws and there may or may not be a conviction. Page 11, line 18 reflected existing law.
- **REP. HURDLE** asked if that meant someone having been reported for suspected child abuse would have a case record. **Ms. Gilke** affirmed that was so.
- REP. HURDLE asked if that record could be released to someone who might want to hire that person.

- Ms. Gilke said the department had developed a policy that if they investigate suspected child abuse and determine that it is substantiated, a letter is sent to the perpetrator listing the ramification which may impact their ability to become a day care provider or foster parent and gives them a description of the process to challenge the record. She described how the department would handle inquiries from prospective employers.
- REP. HURDLE asked if it was based on substantiation within the department. Ms. Gilke affirmed it was.
- REP. HURDLE asked for clarification of the criteria for that substantiation.
- Ms. Gilke said it was outlined under the legal definitions of abuse and neglect.
- **REP. HURDLE** asked if there was any outside agency or court of law which contributes to the substantiation. She was concerned that there could be arbitrary discrimination because of a personal grudge.
- Ms. Gilke said that with the internal checks and balances along with the letter, having to justify the allegations within the legal definitions and because of review within the department with the regional administrator and the department head, it could not happen.
- REP. HURDLE asked again, "The substantiation does occur just within the department with no outside input."
- Ms. Gilke agreed and added that there are sometime parallel court activities which would make a finding that there has been enough evidence to confirm the allegations.
- **REP. HURDLE** asked if there are no court proceedings, were they still authorized based on department information to notify a potential employer that the person may be an offender.
- Ms. Gilke answered that was true.
- REP. KOTTEL asked for an understanding of the intent on page 11, lines 3 through 6. In the case of a person who is fired or has been refused employment based on an allegation, would the employer be immune from any civil liability even though the information was unsubstantiated.
- Ms. Gilke said pursuant to 41-3-205, MCA, covered that and limited the immunity to mandatory reporters.
- REP. KOTTEL insisted that the wording led her to believe that it is not limited to mandatory reporters.

Ms. Gilke explained the reasoning behind the wording and clarified it.

**REP. HURDLE** asked for detail about how the substantiation of child abuse is reached within the department if there is no court case.

Mr. Hudson described the process. He said that there would soon be a third category, "unfounded," added beyond "substantiated or unsubstantiated" which would allow the department to destroy the records. The social worker communicates with the supervisor in making the determination as well as how to proceed in each case. They have to petition the court for investigative authority or ongoing involvement when the determination is made that abuse or neglect has occurred. A hearing is held, the parties are represented and the court takes over due process. If a substantiation is made and the department and family come to an agreement, there is an opportunity for a less formal arrangement to be made. He described the additional internal processes in appeal of the determination.

REP. HURDLE asked if she understood that during the process of substantiation, they could inform the person's employer that there is a charge of child abuse prior to finishing the process.

Mr. Hudson said he understood that if there is an ongoing appeal, they would delay. Ms. Gilke concurred.

**REP. KOTTEL** said she had experience with a DFS employee in a classroom situation who had said that "children at all costs should be kept with the family" and that "when sexual molestation takes place and it's not too bad, we always leave the kids there because it is worse to remove the child." In cases of neglect, the person said, "if you did that, Deb, that would be neglect; but these people live like that and so the fact that the child had no clothes, there was feces all over the floor of the house and sanitation was a little less than might be expected, that is not neglect because that's how these people live and so it is better for the child to stay." She was not comfortable with differing standards for substantiation because the bill wouldn't solve any of that and immunity just would make it worse. asked for assurance that the department is moving toward a balance that is more palatable in protection of the children and the protection of parents who are falsely accused.

Mr. Hudson suggested that the department can make sure they are asking their workers to do something that is humanly possible--not to juggle 40 cases at once, to carry beepers with them every second day--and they could staff their department. He felt that was a decision which rested with the legislature. They could also train people adequately on in-depth issues which is a budget issue resting with the legislature. Third, they can make sure supervisors supervise adequately, which is a department issue. They need to be accountable and encourage a public dialogue about

the kind of work they do and he recommended some of the ways that could be done. He viewed DFS as an agency of community values and he felt they need to encourage debate.

- **REP. BOHARSKI** asked if the different levels of proof were adequate.
- Ms. Gilke responded with her understanding of the different levels of the burden of proof. She would not suggest any statutory changes to them.
- REP. BOHARSKI understood that some action needed to occur within 48 hours.
- Ms. Gilke said the reference to 48 hours was in regard to an emergency removal of a child. If there is imminent risk of harm to a child, the agency may remove the child for up to 48 hours prior to a county attorney filing a petition to have the court review the case.
- REP. BOHARSKI asked if probable cause is established, could the department hold the child for 20 days.
- Ms. Gilke said that was right.
- REP. BOHARSKI felt it should require something beyond probable cause to be able to pull a child out of the home for that period of time. He asked to be convinced otherwise.
- Ms. Gilke believed the probable cause level is adequately high at that initial stage of involvement by the agency. The court must grant the department the authority to remove the child and place the child. Should the court believe there is enough evidence to authorize the child's removal while the department completes the investigation, she felt there were adequate checks and balances at the probable cause standard.

#### Closing by Sponsor:

**REP. KASTEN** closed with the hope that they would not leave "anyone" in the statute in section 9.

#### HEARING ON HB 366

#### Opening Statement by Sponsor:

REP. BETTY LOU KASTEN, HD 99, asked the committee's indulgence to hear a proponent immediately since his time in the area was short. The committee agreed and further agreed to question him immediately after his testimony if needed.

#### Proponents' Testimony:

Clifford Murphy, President, Montana Advocacy Program, submitted written testimony. EXHIBIT 11

Hank Hudson, Director, DFS, declared the department's support.

Paula Crumb presented written testimony. EXHIBIT 12 .

Hal Wallis Melcher, Helena Attorney, Executive Director of Helena Industries, Montana Association for Independent Disabilities Services, and member of the Abuse Prevention Task Force, spoke in favor of HB 366 which would provide them with another tool for acquiring information in hiring persons who would serve the people properly.

{Tape: 3; Side: A}

Their only concern with the legislation was that the investigative process should be thorough and aggressive, but follow due process principles. They felt that having a third party outside DFS would provide objectivity in the investigative process.

Mary Gallagher, Montana Advocacy Program (MAP), presented testimony in favor of HB 366 and HB 186 with opposition to sections mandating reporting to DFS. She said in reality MAP refers most of the complaints of abuse and neglect to DFS for investigation, but there are times when DFS is perceived, rightly or wrongly, as being either too busy or impartial (sic) and would not be preferred as an agency for referral. There are times when MAP must maintain its independent status in discretion in conducting investigations. She asked the committee to amend both bills to exclude the mandatory reporting requirement and to pass the balance of the bills. **EXHIBIT 13** 

#### Informational Testimony:

A letter with attached proposed amendments from DFS is submitted as **EXHIBIT 14** 

An outline of DFS Adult Protective Services is submitted as **EXHIBIT 15** 

A letter from **Judith Carlson**, is included as support of HB 366. **EXHIBIT 16** 

Andree' Larose, Staff Attorney, MAP, read a letter from Jack Sands, Board of Directors of MAP, as a proponent of the bills, with opposition to the mandatory reporting requirements to MAP. EXHIBIT 17

A letter from Curtis Decker, Executive Director, National Association of Protection & Advocacy Systems, outlining the

objection to the mandatory requirement as referred to in the exhibit above. **EXHIBIT 18** 

#### Opponents' Testimony:

None

#### Questions From Committee Members and Responses:

- **REP. SMITH** expressed concern about the statistics for abuse cases being from 90-107 and wanted to learn what standards are used to determine abuse.
- Ms. Crumb said the figure was an estimate because tracking and recording abuse in people with disabilities was not done separately from other populations and sometimes was non-existent.
- REP. MC GEE asked what constitutes abuse.
- Ms. Crumb said for research purposes it is very broadly defined as any physical or mental injury to any person with developmental disabilities (DD).
- **REP. MC GEE** sensed there was a turf battle between a state funded entity and a federally funded entity from the opponents' request that mandatory reporting be eliminated from the bill. He asked if he was right.
- Mr. Hudson replied that he would call it a minor turf battle and that they work very well together in most instances. He gave his perspective that he wanted to know about any reports of abuse.
- REP. MC GEE asked the same question of the sponsor.
- REP. KASTEN said if she had opened on the normal note, she would have told the committee that when she looked at the drafts addressing the same statutes she told the two entities that they must work it out because she would only carry a bill which had been worked out in advance. Had she carried two bills, when it came time to codify them, they would not have fit together. She said there was a turf battle going on.
- REP. MC GEE appreciated the candor.
- REP. BERGMAN asked for clarification of Ms. Gallagher's position and if MAP is a private entity which receives federal funding. She asked where they get their authority and if they only work with DD people.
- Ms. Gallagher explained the authorizing provisions for MAP, which are all in federal statutes dealing with protection and advocacy systems for DD, mental illness, other physical disabilities,

- race-related issues related to physical disabilities as well as a vocational rehabilitation assistance program.
- REP. BERGMAN inquired about the requirements for membership in the group.
- Ms. Gallagher answered that it was basically a program which addresses the mandates spelled out in regulations which address abuse and neglect in institutions. There are various criteria for each of the five programs.
- **REP. BERGMAN** asked if a private citizen could also report to DFS. She asked if MAP is a "watchdog for DFS."
- Ms. Gallagher said any report of abuse or neglect could go to MAP. In each state there is one designated eligible system for this program.
- REP. BERGMAN asked who MAP answers to.
- Ms. Gallagher said it reports annually to the federal government and in individual instances of abuse, they may report to DFS or a county attorney.
- REP. BERGMAN asked if they have anyone in authority over them to be sure they are complying and making proper decisions.
- Ms. Gallagher said their line of authority is to answer to the agencies which fund them such as Department of Education and Department of Health and Human Services.
- REP. GRIMES asked if she had said that this legislation would allow them to pursue additional legal opportunities for their clients.
- Ms. Gallagher answered, "No, in fact it would create no other authorities or duties than currently exist under federal law.
- REP. GRIMES asked if the basic outcome would be to take federal law and make it state statute.
- Ms. Gallagher said that was correct. She said there had been a conflict in a few access statutes.
- REP. GRIMES asked if they deal with the Boulder facility and she replied that they do.
- **REP. GRIMES** asked if this bill was drafted at the suggestion of the advocacy group or if it was a DFS request or jointly considered.
- Mr. Hudson said the part that codifies the federal and state laws had been assessed with MAP for some time. Its purpose was to clarify access to records. The mandatory reporting part was

something the department pursued and it had come up in discussion with provider groups. The purpose of that provision was to solve the question for those provider groups when all abuse and neglect cases would be reported to DFS. The department pursued that and negotiated and discussed at length with MAP how to resolve it. They decided to resolve it through legislation.

REP. GRIMES asked if this access issue would affect the facility at Boulder.

Bob Anderson, Administrator, Special Services, Department of Corrections and Human Services (DCHS), had reviewed the portion of the bill being discussed and they were concerned about the duplications of laws under federal statutes. MAP currently has the authority to access records through federal statutes and sections 9 through 12 contain language which repeats language currently in the federal statute. They think that is a duplication and unnecessary. MAP indicated that they need more clarity because they ran into trouble regarding issues related to files. He said that when they have needed files at the Boulder institution, they have pointed out the federal law and Boulder is quick to comply.

Down the road, there might be more problems because Congress has changed the funding and state statute will remain and then MAP may come in asking for funding to comply. By putting this language in this current bill, it would bless their authority under state statute to continue their lawsuit against the state regarding Eastmont to move and force those residents out of Eastmont by court order into community programs. By putting this in state law, they would have authority to access state records to proceed with their lawsuit against the state.

- REP. GRIMES asked if Mr. Melcher had ever needed information from the Montana Developmental Center (MDC) facility, and if so had they ever had trouble getting that information.
- Mr. Melcher clarified the relationship by saying that the Montana Association for Independent Disabilities Services is an advocate for all DD persons within the state. MDC is not a member of the association. He had never had a problem getting information from MDC and would only be in that relationship when a person was going to leave the institution and go into community services where the providers involved would be discussing the case with them.
- REP. SMITH asked if MAP responds primarily to individual concerns and if that was the only referral source they receive.
- Ms. Gallagher said that was true and that they might get a complaint about someone not being able to receive services or being neglected in the community. They are individual referrals.

- REP. SMITH asked if they would also provide the service in residential facilities.
- Ms. Gallagher replied that MAP was supposed to address any facility that is a care and treatment facility.
- REP. SMITH asked if she agreed that the primary concern would be to prevent ongoing abuse or neglect and Ms. Gallagher agreed.
- REP. SMITH asked if not reporting to DFS would actually hinder that potential to prevent ongoing abuse or neglect.
- Mr. Gallagher answered, "There are more incidences (sic) where, for instance, neglect has been referred to us as a possible issue. And we are more used to responding to those sorts of situations where there is not, for instance, an imminent threat to someone. I can't recall a situation where we have an abuse referral at the moment it happens. Their situation would be responding to abuse where they saw it, certainly using DFS, in fact for most of the primary investigations. But if there was some situation where there was a conflict with our client, and we were not able to report because of our confidentiality requirement under the federal statutes, that would be the only situation that I can think of in an abuse situation..."
- REP. SMITH said, "Then primarily you are dealing with judicial litigation, you may communicate with the department, they may respond and yet you will go ahead and pursue it then in a litigation."
- Ms. Gallagher said that was not correct. Their main emphasis is on a resolution toward the solution. Litigation would come way down the line. They address it at a systemic level, she said.
- REP. BOHARSKI felt the only area which was contentious was the sharing of information though the working relationship is pretty good. He could imagine the situation where a less-than-model employee in the field would disclose information inappropriately. He felt it might be impossible to function as an advocate if they had to disclose everything to the department. He thought they would want the agency to operate independently from DFS.
- Mr. Hudson replied that was the issue the committee would be struggling with in balancing the value of having an independent advocate against the value of the efficiency or duplication in sharing information. He believed that the information received by the department would be handled in such a way as to not allow an employee to use the information to intimidate anyone or hide anything.
- REP. BOHARSKI made clear that the groups are not doing the same thing and there is generally a good working relationship.

- Mr. Hudson agreed, but said that it did not relieve him of the need to share information on abuse and neglect.
- REP. BOHARSKI asked if DFS would find out about the cases sooner or later and Mr. Hudson said that was correct.
- REP. BOHARSKI asked if there were cases where it would be in the interests of the client that the information was not immediately available to DFS.
- Mr. Hudson said they did not think so, but they would benefit from knowing every one.
- REP. GRIMES reflected on Mr. Anderson's comment regarding the Eastmont lawsuit and asked for further information on how the bill would affect that situation.
- Mr. Anderson said that if Eastmont did not close, MAP would force clients out of the institution into community programs for basically the same reasons DCHS requested Eastmont be closed. The lawsuit will proceed if Eastmont doesn't close and MAP has authority to do that and to access records under federal law. Sections 9 through 12 of this bill repeat that authority under state law and that would bless their authority to do it while they already have authority under federal law. It really wouldn't make any difference if it were in this bill, except that it would be a duplication and there is no need for state statute when they already have federal authority.

#### Closing by Sponsor:

REP. KASTEN referenced testimony and asked REP. KOTTEL to review page 9 of HB 366 and compare it with HB 186. She said the definition of abuse is found in section 4 of this bill. Section 17 would require a two-thirds vote because of the immunity granted in the bill. She asked the committee to settle the turf battle discussed during the hearing.

Motion: REP. MC CULLOCH MOVED TO ADJOURN.

{Comments: This set of minutes is complete on three 60-minute tapes.}

HOUSE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE February 9, 1995 Page 24 of 24

#### ADJOURNMENT

Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 12:05 PM.

BOB CLARK, Chairman

JOANNE GUNDERSON, Secretary

BC/jg

# HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

# Judiciary

**ROLL CALL** 

DATE 2/9/95

NAME	PRESENT	ABSENT	EXCUSED
Rep. Bob Clark, Chairman			
Rep. Shiell Anderson, Vice Chair, Majority	/ /	tt Z	·
Rep. Diana Wyatt, Vice Chairman, Minority	V		
Rep. Chris Ahner	/ lat	· #	
Rep. Ellen Bergman	V late	7	
Rep. Bill Boharski	/		
Rep. Bill Carey	V		
Rep. Aubyn Curtiss	V		
Rep. Duane Grimes	V		
Rep. Joan Hurdle	V		
Rep. Deb Kottel			
Rep. Linda McCulloch			
Rep. Daniel McGee	V	·	
Rep. Brad Molnar	V		
Rep. Debbie Shea	/		
Rep. Liz Smith	/		
Rep. Loren Soft			
Rep. Bill Tash	V		
Rep. Cliff Trexler	V		



# HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT

February 9, 1995

Page 1 of 1

Mr. Speaker: We, the committee on Judiciary report that House Bill 55 (first reading copy -- white) do pass as amended.

Signed: Bob Clark,

#### And, that such amendments read:

1. Page 2, lines 6 through 8.

Strike: "\$500" on line 6 through "pay" on line 8

Insert: "\$100"

2. Page 2, line 11. Following: "who" Insert: "knowingly"

-END-

Committee Vote: Yes 15, No 9.



# HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT

· February 9, 1995

Page 1 of 1

Mr. Speaker: We, the committee on Judiciary report that House Bill 296 (first reading copy -- white) do pass.

Signed

Bob Clark, Chair

Committee Vote:
Yes 11, No 8.

### HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

# **ROLL CALL VOTE**

# Judiciary Committee

DATE	2/9/95	_ BILL NO	296 I	NUMBER _	
MOTION: _	100 h	Pass			
		•.			

NAME	AYE	NO
Rep. Bob Clark, Chairman		
Rep. Shiell Anderson, Vice Chairman, Majority		/
Rep. Diana Wyatt, Vice Chairman, Minority		
Rep. Chris Ahner		
Rep. Ellen Bergman		
Rep. Bill Boharski		
Rep. Bill Carey		
Rep. Aubyn Curtiss		
Rep. Duane Grimes		
Rep. Joan Hurdle		
Rep. Deb Kottel		~
Rep. Linda McCulloch	·	/
Rep. Daniel McGee	/	
Rep. Brad Molnar		
Rep. Debbie Shea		V
Rep. Liz Smith		
Rep. Loren Soft		
Rep. Bill Tash		/
Rep. Cliff Trexler		

# **IOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES**

# ABSENTEE VOTE

Date 219-95

Mr. Chairman/Mr. Speaker:

I, the undersigned member, hereby vote absentee on:

16 B111 No. 55

presentative Ohio Ohrun

woting\_\_\_\_\_

aye or no)

EXHIBIT		
DATE	2/9/95	
НВ	429	

Feb. 9, 1995 Testimony of Mike Voeller on House Bill 429

Mr. Chairman, members of the committee. For the record, my name is Mike Voeller and I represent Lee Newspapers of Montana.

We support House Bill 429 and the testimony presented by Charles Walk of the Montana Newspaper Association. I would also like to present some additional testimony.

In the 1960s the late District Judge Lester Loble of Helena established a national reputation for his tough stance on handling juvenile offenders and his insistence that their names be a matter of public record. Today, the names of juvenile offenders, for the most part, are shrouded in secrecy.

I retired last August after 30 years with the Helena Independent Record and 36 years in the newspaper business. Most of my experience has been as an editor and/or editorial page editor. I don't know how many times during those 36 years that I have heard people express frustration with the secrecy surrounding offenses committed by juveniles.

This is just one of many cases in point. In November 1980 I wrote an editorial headlined "There oughtta be a law" which invited readers to submit their ideas for proposed legislation. I was surprised at the number of people who wrote, "Publish the names of juvenile offenders." Early in the 1981 session I discussed the issue and the concerns expressed by readers who responded to my editorial with former Gov. Stan Stephens who was then serving in the Montana Senate from Havre. Stephens sponsored legislation that eventually became Section 2 of 41-5-601. It states that when a petition is filed under 41-5-501, publicity may not be withheld regarding any youth formally charged or proceeded against as or found to be a delinquent youth as a result of the commission of any offense that would be punishable as a felony if the youth were an adult. My recollection is that some teen-agers testified in support of this legislation.

But does the law work in every case? Yesterday I was discussing HB429 with a Helena businessman who expressed his frustration with juvenile crime and secrecy. He told me that last spring the windows of his business as well as the windows of three nearby businesses were shot out with BB guns. The damage totaled \$4,800. When the businessman later asked authorities about his case he was told four juveniles had been arrested and placed on probation. When he asked for their names, he was told they were confidential.

Under current law names of juveniles are public record if they are cited for traffic offenses, including DUI. However, if juveniles are charged with illegal possession their names are not a matter of public record. What's the difference?

I readily admit that my opinion that the names of juvenile offenders should be published is based on anecdotal evidence. However, I think it has validity worthy of consideration and that the public would applaud passage of House Bill 429.

DATE 2/9/95
HB 37/

FEBRUARY 6, 1995

Representative Liz Smith House District #56 Capital Station Helena, Mt. 59620

Dear Representative Smith,

For the last 16 years, I have been employed by the Missoula County Sheriff's Department. In that time, I have been involved in many situations that required the use of a K9 and his officer. During those times when a K9 was available, his assistance was invaluable. I have had the pleasure to see first hand what a trained K9 is capable of doing whether it be tracking, drug detection or officer protection. I am well aware of the time and effort that is required to train and care for a K9. I feel strongly that K9 units should play a bigger role in law enforcement or possibly at correction facilities in the state of Montana.

Please accept this letter as my support to update Section 45-8-209, MCA, Harming a police dog--penalty. I have reviewed a draft of the amendments to the present code. It is my opinion that the penalties should be more severe than the amendments indicate.

Thank you for your time and attention to this legislation.

Sincerely,

Detective Larry Jacobs

Missoula County Sheriff's Department

200 West Broadway

Missoula, Mt. 59802

EXHIBIT	<u> </u>	
PULLA L	2/9/95	11.1.1.2.27
DATE	2/9/95	
НВ	371	

# Amendment to House Bill 371 First Reading Copy

Requested by Representative Liz Smith Prepared by Beth Baker, Department of Justice

1. Title, line 5.

Following: "DOG;"

Insert: "CLARIFYING THE DEFINITION OF POLICE DOG;"

2. Page 1, line 12.

Following: "dog"

Strike: all of line 13 through "manner" on line 14.

3. Page 1, line 24.

Strike: "law enforcement" Insert: "criminal justice"

Strike: ", as defined in 7-32-201,"

4. Page 1, line 25.

Following: "work"

Insert: ", including but not limited to detection by scent of bombs, explosives, narcotics, or accelerants, or the location of a missing or escaped person"

5. Page 1, line 26.

Following: "(iii)"

Insert: "owned, possessed, or"

6. Page 1, line 26.

Following: "control"

Insert: "or supervision"

7. Page 1, line 26.

Following: "officer"

Insert: "or an authorized representative of a criminal
justice agency."

DATE 2/9/95

HB 37/

Exhibit 4 is an oversized poster. The original is stored at the Historical Society at 225 North Roberts Street, Helena, MT 59620-1201. The phone number is 444-2694.

#### DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES HB.



MARC RACICOT, GOVERNOR

(406) 444-5900 FAX (406) 444-5956

## STATE OF MONTANA:

HANK HUDSON, DIRECTOR

PO BOX 8005 HELENA, MONTANA 59604-8005

#### February 9, 1995

DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES TESTIMONY IN SUPPORT OF HB 186
PRESENTED BY ANN GILKEY

The department has drafted a bill to generally revise the statutes pertaining to child protective services. The most significant amendments to existing law include the following provisions:

- Section 6 deletes the definition of "dependent youth." This definition is overly broad and not necessary to carry out the agency mandate to protect abused and neglected children. Sections 1 through 4, 7, 14, 17, 18, 23 and 26 simply delete reference to this term and other "clean-up" language.
- Section 6 also defines "parent" to include biological, adoptive and step parents to describe the type of families with which DFS routinely deals.
- Section 8 adds advocates and guardians ad litem, including "CASA" volunteers, as mandatory reporters of suspected child abuse or neglect.
- Section 9 clarifies immunity for social workers or officials investigating reports of suspected child abuse or neglect, or reporting child abuse. New subsection (2) provides limited immunity for people providing or using information regarding risks posed by a potential employee or volunteer who will have unsupervised contact with children.
- Section 10 expands the list of persons to whom DFS records may be released. The majority of the amendments are based on recommendations from federal regulations including the release of information to the state's advocacy program, foster and adoptive families, the alleged perpetrator, a person engaged in research, a child fatality review team, and limited disclosure to the media. We have also included release of limited, relevant information to an employer regarding a prospective employee or volunteer who will have unsupervised contact with children.
- Sections 11 and 12 delete the outdated references to "county welfare department" and "office of human services."

- Section 13 allows a child's hearsay statements to be introduced at administrative hearings regarding licensing to prevent the trauma of young witnesses having to testify.
- Section 15 clarifies that DFS or a licensed child-placing agency must study the home of a prospective placement of a child.
- Section 16 revamps the authority of courts to order limited emancipation of an eligible youth.
- Section 19 clarifies that upon termination of parental rights custody of the child may be granted to the department, a licensed adoption agency or other individual who has been approved by the agency and has received agency consent for the transfer of custody.
- Section 21 clarifies that a parent whose rights have been terminated does not have the right to his or her child's departmental records.
- Section 22, 24 and 25 clarify that the agency not only licenses child care and day care facilities, but in some instances registers such facilities.

EXHIBIT.	5
	2-9-95
1	HB 186

#### Amendments to HB 186

1. Page 9, line 30.
Following: "advocate"

Strike: "or"

Insert: ", including the state protection and advocacy program unless disclosure would violate provisions of state of federal law; or (j) a",

2. Page 12, line 3. Following: "by"

Insert: "29 U.S.C. 794(e), 42 U.S.C.10805 and"

3. Page 16 Following: line 4

Insert: "(d) A child may not be removed from his or her home based solely on an anonymous, uncorroborated allegation of child abuse or neglect."

Renumber: subsequent sections

Lyxiii waa i	<b>(-</b>
DATE	2/9/95
НВ	186

OF SOCIAL AND REHABILITATION SERVICES

DEPARTMEN	T OF St	OCIAL AND	REHAUTETATA	CCCCEN
USE ARTHER		SESTECTIVE	- cervices CASE	さんがらにい
DEPARTMEN CALIONI DATABASE SYS	TEMS:	PROTECTIVE	2511.505	

Αā

ACTION S

IEU: 554 1000216 FERRAL DATE - 6		LAME KUIF	WORKER	COUNTY	ALT CASEWORKER
(CASE) NUMBER	А	,	REFERR	AL SOURCE	CASE STATUS E
MATTONAL VERSE	× 	s 			TO CLIENT A
EXUAL ABUSE TYSICAL NEGLECT AOTIONAL NEGLECT		 		START DATE 31287	INVES COMP DATE 031987
EDICAL NEGLECT DUCATION NEGLECT		-	SERVI	CES PROVIDE	D 6 C
ATALITY	- MPLAINT RES	- -	CF SE	ARCH REQUES	STED _
NEXT CLIENT					•
GE: IIT PF1 FOR CLIEN			WYCE SCE	eem/pes FO	R SEARCH SCRREN 14:25 7/03/9

BO--SESSION1 R 3 C 78

# VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

(Not Under Arrest)

HB\_\_

I, Mied. a Skunt, am not under arrest for, nor am
I being detained for any criminal offenses concerning the events I am about
to make known to Officer Sagram. Without being
accused or questioned about any criminal offenses regarding the facts I am
about to state, I volunteer the following information of my own free will, for
whatever purpose it may serve. I understand that this statement may be
used in a court of law if deemed necessary by the prosecuting attorneys.

I am 58 years of age and I live at 1/8 It. Front Lungain. M.
My home phone # is: 222-2436 My business phone # is
Who was involved? a many a letter gul maybe 2
year all and a bay about low T.
When? autife & incide of Ray recturant in Breman
Where ou Sunday Oct 2 about 2 oclock pm.
What was involved? (Details of incident) My husband to wire having
been all in the resturant when we saw a dock slim smelled
man bringing a very nicely dressed lettle good, by the hand
up the walk beside our window, the out started to Cry a be
and the man perhed her up, stalked back to a more war were
chedel windows and open I the site down theawing her in
the back seat area. To then closed the down of we could
sile him raising his hands over his head & seemed to
he betting her apin + again - The sew him then open the
To dash - Gerked the girl from the floor & statuties new
the door Scalling anyeld then, he appeared to raise he
ress & looks of her parties took her out of the von- we
beerved she was not Crying but ush box passed was low
I have read each page of this statement consisting of pages(s), each
page of which bears my signature, and corrections, if any, bear my initials,
and I certify that the facts contained herein are true and correct. Dated at
Livingston this 4 day of Oct , 1988.

WITNESSED BY OFFICER

Signature of person giving the Voluntary Statement

her cheeks the resturant

P.R. .. . <u>vv-10-4</u>-05

# VOLUNTARY STATEMENT (Not Under Arrest)

LAncoct	8
DATE	2/9/95
HB.	186

I, Jou M. Provenzano, am not under arrest for, nor am
I being detained for any criminal offenses concerning the events I am about
to make known to Officer Sonom. Without being
accused or questioned about any criminal offenses regarding the facts I am
about to state, I volunteer the following information of my own free will, for
whatever purpose it may serve. I understand that this statement may be
used in a court of law if deemed necessary by the prosecuting attorneys.
I am 24 years of age and I live at 402 Nelson Story.
My home phone # is: $587-2761$ My business phone # is $586-4423$ .
Who was involved? Hyspanic looking male in his late 30's early
405, with black Short bain + glasses with a red print shirt.
When? 2:30 pm an Oct 2, 1988.
Where? Rax Restaurant outside the parking lot in Vehicle.
What was involved? (Details of incident) Redish, marca van Dulled
1. poudside of Rex. We were sitting at a table inside
I coving out at the parking lot. People got out of
a van + Started to enter restaurant except for
the man with glasses + a hispanic looking little
Girl around 3 of 4 years old + she was crying.
The wouldn't Stop so he grabbed her arm +
pulled her back into the van + Sat her down ingre
-her back the hit her with his hand bodge kodo bate on her
head orogenow then he laid her down + at first
I thought maybe he was spanking her but then
I saw he wasn't using his hand but his fist, >
(use back if needed)
I have read each page of this statement consisting of pages(s), each
page of which bears my signature, and corrections, if any, bear my initials,
and I certify that the facts contained herein are true and correct. Dated at
this 2 <sup>nd</sup> day of October, 1988.
Janem
WITNESSED BY OFFICER
Joy m. Proversano
Signature of person giving the Yountary Statement

BOZEMAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

And it looked like he hit her 407 5
times. Then he quit the opened the door
+ Started brushing has bair they hath got
times. Then he quit the opened the door t Started brushing her hair, they both got out of the van & I saw bouse bruises on
her face. She stopped cruing but she looked
Frightered. We heard tox people behind us
Les Fecc. She stopped crying but she locked frightened. We heard tox people behind us about the incident also, so Sam went to talk to them & they Saw the same thing. Then they went into the restaurant with nothing in these hands. His wife who was Courasion also had two other Caucasion kids.
talk to them & they Saw the same thing.
Then they went into the restaurant with
nothing in there hands. His wife who was
Courasion also had two other Caucasion kids.
The little boy said that she needed her diaper
The little boy said that she needed her disper Changed but the dad just Ganbod the little
girlt put her in the book chair without Charping her diaper. The webe then went back out to the van to get the checkbook. That was the
her diapon. The webe then went back out
to the van to get the checkbook. That was the
time that san decided to teelk to the other couple who saw what we did and we got their hame.
who saw what he did and he got their hame.
Then we left the restaciont.

P.R.	· 88-10-3-05
VOLUNTARY STATEMENT	9
(Not Under Arrest)	DATE 2/9/95
<b>,</b>	HB 186
I, SALVATORE F PROVENZANO, am not under	arrest for, nor am
I being detained for any criminal offenses concerning the	
to make known to Hicen Sancon	
accused or questioned about any criminal offenses regardi	
about to state, I volunteer the following information of my	_
whatever purpose it may serve. I understand that this	•
used in a court of law if deemed necessary by the prosec-	
I am 23 years of age and I live at 402 Nfc50.	N Story touses.
My home phone # is: 5x7-276/ My business phone	, , ,
Who was involved? Thentity is not and KNOWN, As	,
Black Hair, Black Mustache W/Sunglasser, SMALL Fen	
When? 2 oc+bber 1988 +	
Where? Restaurist Packing lot	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
What was involved? (Details of incident) while sitting	in Rax Rostoweast (window sea.
the previously mentioned Male dragged (by the	arm), then carried the
previously mentioned female child but into the	narking hit and into a
en 86-88 ford acrostur (Marain whor) Ligense No.	6-81 261. The Make then
Lit the female 3 times in the head area. The	L
the rear seat and repeatedly hit the child	these Will were with
closed firt. After the Male hit the famal	e appex 10 times he
wed her from the set vehicle and brought	her into the restaraunt.
e tok her isto the vertroin where they rem	wind for approx. 5 min.
when they came not of the restroom they will within	2 feet of where I was
sitting. The smil child the Looked very frighted be	
was sweller or Puffy and Bruises werell over the	
	use back if needed)
I have read each page of this statement consisting of	
page of which bears my signature, and corrections, if any	
and I certify that the facts contained herein are true and	
this day of	198
1 Janear	Service A
WITNESSED BY OFFICER	· · ·
TITIO DE OTTOER	

125,

Voluntary Statement Signature of person gi

BOZEMAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

P	.R.	No.

the rest of the family and the younger boy made comment to the	- 1500
fact that her diper was disty and that someone should come	j C 👛
+ The ADULT MALIE (father) grabbed the small formate chill a	ad
said " Mon't norry about it go get something to eat! " His to	
was angry. While the spilt make was bringing the small ferra	
11th lax (after the benting) the nother went out to the uphicle	
and licked for something. When she returned it seemed like the	wi
surrying a chockback. While this incident was taking place. The	
second whicher to what was happening. After this happened I.	JUINGER
over to the table next to mine, (also a window reat) and to	h.
with Bill & Mickey Stewart of Livingston MT. They said the	
ther Name and address. They used me to all the police	e as
son as possible. I was shaking while I wrote there addr	C55 K
because I was so arasy of what had just happened, I we	nt !
and called the Brzene- price Dept. and reported what I had to officer SANEM. I Aid to approx. 30 min after the c	d Jern
to officer SANEM. I' Did so approx. 30 min after the c	Ven
took place,	
Civilia office Books the child the Class of the first	f H
Las and hold the deild's fine is his hard the thee started	1 6 to
(Note: after Dealing the child; the father opened the door do har and held the child's fore in his hand whe then started her hair)	
	1-degit
	· 1254
	700 d 1 m/s

### REPORT OF INVESTIGATION

EXHIBIT	
DATE.	2/9/95
НВ	186

SUBJECT:	Report of Investigation of Domestic Abuse
REFERENCE:	Complaint # <sub>88-10-02-05</sub> (#
	Complainant: Sam Provenzano

SUSPECT(S): Name: Arthur Dennis KUIPERS

Address: 200 E. Rosebud Belgrade, Mt

Date of Birth: 3/7/52 Social Security Number:

### 10-2-88 DETAILS OF COMPLAINT/INVESTIGATION:

At approximately 1445 hrs. this investigating officer, Linda Sanem, received a call on the emergency line from Sam (Salvatore) Provenzano who stated that he wanted to report a case of child abuse. Over the phone he told me that a hispanic looking man had taken a small child, approx. 3 yrs. old, into a maroon van license #6-81861 and beaten her with several strikes with a closed fist. He stated he thought they were still at Rax where the incident occurred. I responded with Officer Paul Erickson to investigate the complaint. The van was still there on our arrival. Officer Erickson asked the suspect to go with him. Officer Erickson spoke with the suspect identified as Arthur Dennis KUIPERS. I observed a child matching the description the compl. had given and asked to speak with the child's mother. A woman in a dress with blondish hair accompanied me the a back hallway carrying the child. The child was dressed in a blue sailor suit and there were several bruises on the child's face. I identified myself to the female and told her that we were investigating a complaint of possible domestic abuse. her what the child's name was and how her face became bruised. She told me the child was recently adopted and had been "falling down alot". I asked the female her name. She replied, "I don't know if I should give it to you or just call my attorney". After telling her again why I was there and she had to give me her name she gave her name as "Martha". She reluctantly gave me her address and phone # but refused to give me her date of birth. She also told me the child's name was Carly and that social workers already know about the bruises. She was very uncooperative and defensive at times stating that she saw nothing in reference to Carly being hit. She told me that she went to the van to get a diaper. At times she was calm and seemed appreciative of what I was telling her about her husband and at times was upset that I was interfering. She demanded to know why I was there after I had already told her why I was there. Officer Quam and Officer Erickson heard part of my conversation with "Martha". Officer Erickson advised her that our report and witness statements would be turned over to SRS who would investigate the complaint further. We then left the restaurant.

Following that I met with Sam and Joy Provenzano at the station and obtained statements from them. So far I have been unable to obtain written statements from the other two witnesses, William and Mickey Stewart in Livingston. I spoke briefly with Mrs. Stewart on the phone and I am sending them statements to fill out. As of 1630 hrs. 10-2-88 this concludes this officer's investigative report.

COPY Luch Sorem.

Officer Linda Sanem

EXHIBIT //
DATE 2/9/95
HB 366
(406)444-3889
1-800-245-4743

### MONTANA ADVOCACY PROGRAM, Inc.

316 North Park, Room 211 P.O. Box 1680 Helena, Montana 59624

(VOICE - TDD) Fax #: (406)444-0261

February 9, 1995

Bob Clark, Chairperson House Judiciary Committee State Capitol Helena, Montana

Re: HB 366 and HB 186

Dear Chairman Clark and Members of the Committee:

For the record, my name is Clifford Murphy and I am the President of the Board of Directors for the Montana Advocacy Program. I am also a member of the Mental Health Association of Montana, the State and Local Youth Advisory Councils of the Department of Family Services and the Montana Committee for Emotionally Disturbed Children.

### Testimony in Support of HB 366

Montana Advocacy Program is a private, non-profit organization designated by the State of Montana to protect and advocate the rights of persons with disabilities. MAP is fully federally funded and thus, has the rare distinction of being a "funded federal mandate."

The Board of Directors of MAP is a group of persons from various walks of life and with varied outlooks on social events, but with a common interest in advocating for the rights of persons who are seriously disabled. We volunteer our time. By law, my duty and the duty of my colleagues is to determine policy for the agency within the limits of federal laws governing the program and to attempt to develop the specific program so as to achieve maximum effectiveness in providing protection and advocacy for persons with disabilities.

On behalf of this Board, I urge you to support HB 366 to help us achieve greater effectiveness.

HB 366 codifies in state law the duties and authorities of two MAP programs, the Protection and Advocacy for Persons with Developmental Disabilities (PADD) program and the Protection and Advocacy for Individual Rights (PAIR) program. When Montana received funds under the protection and advocacy statutes, the Governor gave assurances that our program has these authorities. What we seek to do in HB 366 is merely to ensure that state law is consistent with the assurances already given by the Governor, so that we can more effectively perform our advocacy responsibilities. HB 366 does not broaden MAP's authority in any way.

Our primary concern is that our authority to access records, persons and facilities be clear in state law. Currently, our staff sometimes face long delays in obtaining records which are needed to effectively represent a client. These delays can cause harm to a client. The clarification contained in HB 366 will help eliminate delay when MAP is asked to advocate on a client's behalf.

### Opposition to Mandatory Reporting Requirement in HB 366 and HB 186

There is one portion of HB 366 to which we cannot lend our support and that is the provision in Section 6 which requires that MAP report all incidents of suspected abuse or neglect uncovered by the agency to the Department of Family Services. We oppose a similar provision in HB 186.

The Department of Family Services and MAP share a common goal: to eliminate abuse and neglect of persons with disabilities. Both agencies have authority and responsibility to investigate incidents of neglect and abuse. Our Board and staff do not believe that requiring MAP staff to report to DFS all incidents it encounters will further the common goal of both agencies. MAP is viewed by some clients or potential clients as a more independent agency than DFS; some of our referrals are from persons who perceive (whether rightly or wrongly) that DFS is not independent from servicing agencies and therefore not likely to provide the remedy they seek. Such distrust, whether or not justified, will carry over to MAP if MAP has to report all cases of neglect or abuse to DFS. The result will be that fewer incidents of neglect or abuse will be uncovered.

In conclusion, I urge you to support HB 366. However, I respectfully request that you attach an amendment to delete the mandatory reporting provision. The common goal of DFS and MAP will be furthered by that elimination. Thank you for your time.

Sincerely,

Clifford Murphy

President, Board of Directors

EXHIBIT	12
DATE	2/9/95
НВ	348

Mr. Chairman and Committee Members:

For the record, my name is Paula Crumb. For the past two (2) years I have worked as an Abuse Prevention Specialist on a Developmental Disabilities Planning and Advisory Council funded Project. The goal of this project was to reduce the incidents of abuse, neglect and exploitation of persons with developmental disabilities in Montana. I am testifying today because I am a strong advocate for people with developmental disabilities. In my research I found that on a national level it is estimated that between 90 and 100% of persons with developmental disabilities have experienced abuse at some point in their lives.

Throughout the life of this project, I worked in conjunction with the abuse prevention task force. This body is made up of members from the Developmental Disabilities Division (DDD), the Department of Family Services(DFS), the Montana Advocacy Program (MAP), the Department of Justice, (DOJ) parents of persons with developmental disabilities, and providers of community-based services to people with developmental disabilities. The task force established the goals of the project, set the direction for research and fixed on project outcomes.

Major outcomes of the project included: (1) a requirement that all contracted provider organizations conduct a thorough screening and background check, including a statewide check through the DOJ, on prospective employees; (2) the writing and distribution of a comprehensive handbook covering best practices on screening and hiring good people to work in service provider agencies; (3) the production and statewide distribution of a video, brochures and posters that are used to train newly hired staff and remind veteran staff how to prevent, recognize and report when and if it occurs; and (4) the identification of legislation that would be pursued by the DFS during 1995 session of the legislature. This includes H.B. 366. These changes will benefit persons with developmental disabilities as well as the agencies providing support and assistance to these individuals.

I support this legislation. In particular sections 52-3-813 and section 52-3-814. Section 52-3-814 allowing immunity from liability when information is exchanged in good faith. With the ever present danger of costly litigation this section is vital to stimulate an open exchange of information. This immunity assists the employer to feel comfortable about using information given when making a hiring decision and ultimately helps to protect people with developmental disabilities. Section 52-3-813 allowing the department to give information for the purpose of background screening for prospective employees or volunteers. Currently, there is access to statewide conviction information, but many individuals who have abused and are substantiated by the department are not charged with a crime by the county attorney. Having access to the department's information is another way for providers to gain information about a prospective employee and assure that

people with developmental disabilities are free from abuse. My only concern with this section is that the appeal process available is an administrative review through the same department that makes the case determination. If we are denying employment or taking other personnel action based upon the department's decisions, I believe it is necessary to build in due process procedures up front by providing for a fair hearing process that allows substantiated individuals to appeal decisions before an impartial body.

EXHIBIT.	13
DATE	2/9/95
HB	366

### MONTANA ADVOCACY PROGRAM, Inc.

316 North Park, Room 211 P.O. Box 1680 Helena, Montana 59624 (406)444-3889 1-800-245-4743 (VOICE - TDD) Fax #: (406)444-0261

February 9, 1995

Bob Clark, Chairperson House Judiciary Committee State Capitol Helena, Montana

Re: HB 366 and HB 186

For the record, my name is Mary Gallagher and I am the acting Executive Director of the Montana Advocacy Program. I would like to submit the following testimony in support of HB 366, but in opposition to those provisions in HB 366 and HB 186 which mandate the reporting of incidents of abuse and neglect to the Department of Family Services.

### Opposition to mandatory reporting requirement in HB 366 and HB 186

I want to expand upon the testimony of our Board President, Cliff Murphy, and explain further why MAP is opposed to the mandatory reporting requirement. First, let me explain more about the protection and advocacy system programs. Basically, the programs have two duties: (1) to independently investigate incidents of abuse or neglect involving persons with disabilities; and (2) to pursue legal and other appropriate remedies on behalf of persons with disabilities to ensure enforcement of their rights. We believe the reporting requirement would improperly interfere with these advocacy duties and, in turn, negatively impact our client.

- 1. The reality is that MAP refers most complaints of abuse and neglect to DFS for investigation. However, there are times when DFS is perceived as being biased. This is especially true in rural areas where there may be only one DFS social worker; the DFS worker and manager of the facility being investigated are often friends. One advocate at MAP has received at least six calls in the past year from people who called our agency primarily because they did not believe DFS was effective. Another advocate received a referral when DFS declined to investigate because the only witness to the incident was developmentally disabled and the DFS worker believed, therefore, that the witness was not credible. Before attempting to conduct our own investigation, the advocate approached DFS administration and the case was re-opened for an investigation. So please do not think that MAP is refusing to report to DFS and putting clients at risk. MAP does report most incidents to DFS, but there are times when MAP is sought out because MAP is viewed as more independent. At those times, MAP must retain the discretion to conduct an independent investigation without involving DFS.
- 2. When conducting an investigation, MAP must be able to control the release of information in a strategic manner: We must be able to ensure that the release of information does not

compromise the integrity of the investigation, expose vulnerable persons to retaliation, or interfere with the potential legal remedies.

- 3. The proposed reporting requirement would, in most cases, violate MAP's obligation under federal law to maintain confidentiality. MAP staff would be at risk of violating confidentiality provisions of federal law whenever they reported an incident of abuse or neglect to DFS, and at risk of violating the state reporting requirements whenever they decided not to report an incident of abuse or neglect. I do not believe our employees should be put in that position whenever they try to represent an individual.
- 4. The clause which allows MAP to refrain from disclosing information if it "would violate provisions of federal or state law" is of little comfort or direction. It would be a violation of federal law to compel disclosure in any circumstance where MAP exercises the discretion, in the interest of the client, to refrain from reporting. This would mean that the mandatory reporting requirement would only apply to those situations in which MAP chooses to report. Yet those reports which are made voluntarily would be made with or without this statutory requirement.
- 5. There is a real risk that a statutory reporting requirement could be used by facilities who are being investigated to hinder an investigation initiated by MAP. The facility could seek criminal prosecution of MAP for not first reporting to DFS.
- 6. As currently drafted, MAP would be required to disclose information to DFS even when MAP is investigating a DFS facility. This would not only seriously undermine the investigation; it is a clear violation of federal law. A P&A cannot be required to disclose to the facility being investigated the substance of a report of abuse or neglect. [See February 8, 1994 opinion letter issued by the Administration on Developmental Disabilities (within the Department of Health and Human Services), which administers the DD Act.]
- 7. This requirement will cause more confusion in the field about MAP's role and MAP's authority to conduct investigations. MAP already faces resistance, due in part to the lack of clarity in state law about MAP's duties and authorities. There would be more confusion about how MAP could be an agency with separate investigative authority, yet be required to report to DFS.

### Support of HB 366

We urge your support of the provisions of HB 366 which clarify in state law the responsibilities and authorities of the state protection and advocacy system.

1. The portions of this bill clarifying MAP's responsibilities have two components. There are two sections, Sections 11 and 12, which recognize that the PADD and PAIR programs are designated protection and advocacy systems in the State of Montana and which incorporate federal provisions describing MAP's duties and authorities into state law. A section very similar to these was passed by the Montana legislature two sessions ago with respect to the Protection and Advocacy for Individuals with Mental Illness (PAIMI) program. Second, this bill amends those sections in state law which restrict access to records to include the PADD. PAIR and

EXHIBIT.		_
DATE	2-9-95	_
L	HB 366	•

PAIMI in the list of identified entities with access authority.

2. Our primary concern is that our authority to have access to persons, records and facilities be clearly stated in state law. Currently, our staff sometimes face long delays in obtaining records which are needed to effectively represent a client. These delays can cause harm to a client, especially if we are prevented from having the access we need to conduct an investigation of abuse or neglect. This happens because state law provisions on confidentiality which list those persons or entities who are authorized to gain access to records do not currently list the P&A system. Yet, most providers rely upon state law when deciding whether to allow access.

As Cliff Murphy testified, HB 366 does not broaden MAP's authority in any way; it simply clarifies the law to eliminate the conflict between state law and the assurances given by the Governor about MAP's authority when Montana accepted federal funds.

In closing, I urge you amend HB 366 and HB 186 to delete the requirement that MAP report incidents of abuse and neglect to DFS and then pass HB 366. Thank you for your time.

Sincerely,

Mary Gallagher
Mary Gallagher

**Acting Director** 

### DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES

EXHIBIT 4

DATE 2/9/95

HB 366



MARC RACICOT, GOVERNOR

(406) 444-5900 FAX (406) 444-5956

## STATE OF MONTANA

HANK HUDSON, DIRECTOR

PO BOX 8005 HELENA, MONTANA 59604-8005

### February 9, 1995

DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES TESTIMONY IN SUPPORT OF HB 366

The Department of Family Services urges your support of HB 366. The bill will clean up language in the statutes related to adult protective services, such as changing references to "developmentally disabled" people to "persons with developmental disabilities." It also consolidates redundant laws and repeals unnecessary laws.

The bill expands the mandatory reporting law by including advocates and guardians as people who must report suspected abuse or neglect of the elderly and persons with developmental disabilities. The release of confidential information is expanded to include a broader range of people who serve the client population, especially providers of services to the elderly and persons with developmental disabilities. For example, if a nursing home operator asked for information regarding an applicant who would be providing direct, unsupervised care to an elderly person, the agency could inform the provider whether there was protective services information indicating that the person posed a risk to clients.

Along with authorizing the release of information to providers, the bill provides limited immunity to persons giving or receiving such information.

Other provisions of the bill deal with the advocacy and protection program in Montana and will be addressed by staff from that program.

### Proposed Amendment to HB 366

1. Page 9, line 17.
Following:"systems"

Strike: "authorized under the provisions"
Insert: "pursuant to the authorization"

2. Page 14, line 9. Strike: "ischarge" Insert: "discharge"

EXHIBIT	15
DATE	2/9/95
HB	366

### MONTANA DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES

### **ADULT PROTECTIVE SERVICES**

### **PROGRAM DESCRIPTION:**

Protective services are provided by DFS community social workers to persons age 60 and older and to mentally or physically disabled adults who are at risk of physical or mental harm due to abuse, sexual abuse, neglect, or exploitation. DFS social workers investigate any referrals of alleged abuse, sexual abuse, neglect, or exploitation. If the investigation indicates the alleged victim has been or is being abused, sexually abused, neglected, or exploited the social worker develops a plan of services to eliminate or reduce the risk to the aged or disabled victim.

### **GOALS:**

- Provide each client with a choice in selecting or refusing services insofar as he/she is able.
- Provide the necessary services and supports to allow the client to do as much for him or herself as he or she is able.
- Provide the least restrictive services to allow the client to function at the highest independent level possible.
- Protective services will only be provided until the risk is reduced or removed or until the client refuses to accept services.

### **SERVICES PROVIDED:**

DFS community social workers provide or arrange for most of the protective services that are provided to victims. DFS home attendants and human service aides also may provide protective services in case specific situations. In rural areas the local DFS social worker is not only responsible for adult protective services but also must provide child protective services. Adult protective services that the DFS social worker can provide or arrange for can include:

- 1. Investigation and assessment of referrals.
- 2. Utilization of family and community resources.
- 3. Strengthening current living situations.

- 4. Removal from unsafe situations.
- 5. Development and protection of financial resources.
- 6. Legal intervention. (could include court ordered investigations, arranging for restraining orders, or arranging or obtaining full or limited guardianships)
- 7. Public awareness activities as time permits to assure that victims of abuse, neglect, or exploitation are identified and provided services.

### **BUDGET AND FUNDING:**

Please refer to the department's overall budget. The department does not have a separate budget for adult protective services since most of the field staff that provide these services are also responsible for providing protective services to children.

### **PERFORMANCE INDICATORS:**

- 1. DFS staff completed investigations of 694 cases of adult abuse, neglect or exploitation in FY 87. In FY 94 DFS staff completed 1480 investigations. The number of completed APS investigations more than doubled in the past seven years.
  - Based on historical data, it is projected that DFS adult protective services workers will investigate 1628 referrals in FY96 and 1791 referrals in FY97.
- 2. DFS staff provided extensive adult protective services to 317 clients in FY 87 and to 503 clients in FY 94.
  - Based on historical data, it is projected that DFS staff will provide extensive adult protective services to 553 clients in FY 96 and to 608 clients in FY 97.
  - It is projected that DFS staff will provide brief adult protective services to an additional 359 clients in FY 96 and to 395 clients in FY 97. (Brief services could include identifying services other than adult protective services, referring clients to those services, assisting clients to access those services, and follow up.)
- 3. DFS will continue to contract with St. Vincent's Hospital in Billings to operate a 24-hour hot-line. The hot-line will process 216 calls in FY 96 and 238 calls in FY 97.

**DFS: APS.195** 

EXHIBIT_		
DATE	2/1/95	
	366	

### HB 366

AN ACT GENERALLY REVISING THE LAWS RELATING TO ADULT PROTECTIVE SERVICES;....EXPANDING THE LIST OF PERSONS TO WHOM CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION MAY BE RELEASED;...GRANTING LIMITED IMMUNITY TO PERSONS WHO PROVIDE OR USE BACKGROUND OR EMPLOYMENT SCREENING INFORMATION REGARDING AN EMPLOYEE'S OR VOLUNTEER'S HISTORY OF ABUSE...

### February 8, 1995

I am Judith H. Garlson, citizen, testifying in favor of HB 366. As some of you know, I have been involved in human services in Montana for many years, most recently as a lobbyist for several organizations and as a member of an Abuse Prevention Task Force made up of providers of services to persons with developmental disabilities.

One problem which has come up from time to time over the years has been abuse by staff of residents or users of services. More than once, the same person will be abusive in one agency, be fired, and then hired by another similar agency. Because of the laws regarding fair treatment of personnel, it is not possible for one agency to tell another agency that the applicant was fired because of abuse.

Our Task Force considered many ways of preventing abuse in the first place. Training has been beefed up and increased through use of written and video materials. This is a major method of prevention of abuse.

But one area which kept coming up was the one where abusive persons can keep making the rounds of human service agencies. If they are never actually convicted of a crime, there is no record.

Certainly we are concerned about protection of the rights of employees. We do not want to be involved in spreading unfounded rumors. But there must be a first consideration for the safety of the individuals under the care of the state. The parts of this bill which will help considerably with this are: 1) the new section specifying that information can be shared with an employer who is screening applicants, and 2) the new section providing immunity from civil and criminal liability for a person who provides information about an employees.

My hat is off to Representative Betty Lou Kasten for sponsoring this needed piece of legislation.

Judith H. Carlson 408 Washington Drive Helena, MT 59601 DATE 2/9/95

THE GRAND BY THE STREET BILLINGS, MONTANA 59101

Jack E. Sands

February 6, 1995

The Honorable Bob Clark Chairman House Judiciary Committee Capitol Station Helens, MT 59620

RE: Proposed amendment to HB 366 and HB 186

Dear Chairman Clark and Members of the Committee:

I am writing as a private Montanan and one of the ten volunteer members of the Board of Directors of the Montana Advocacy Program, Inc. MAP's Board of Directors opposes those provisions of HB 366 and HB 186 which require that MAP report all incidents of suspected abuse or neglect to the Department of Family Services, and respectfully requests that those provisions be amended out of the two bills.

Before explaining why, it night be helpful to the Committee to understand MAP's unique role in our State. MAP is federally funded but is governed by a Board of private Montanans. The federal statutes and regulations governing the programs MAP administrative guidelines, but its Board of Directors establishes MAP's priorities, goals, and objectives.

MAP's job, essentially, is to be a law firm for some of Montana's most disadvantaged -- the developmentally disabled, mentally ill, brain-injured, and others who are disabled through no fault of their own. MAP's mandate is to regard these Montanan's as our legal clients -- to serve their interests, to be guided by their commands, and to one loyalty to no others, particularly to State or federal government agencies, to the institutions in which our clients are sometimes confined, or to those who provide services to them. MAP's role is to make the laws work for our clients, from their perspective. Thus MAP is directed by Montanans and serves Montanans.

With this background in mind, let me outline the reasons why we request that the mandatory reporting provisions of HB 366 and HB 186 not apply to MAF:

First, they interfere with MAP's role to advocate for the interests of our clients. Our clients will not trust us if they cannot confide in us.

Second, they would often violate the attorney- client privilege.

Third, they violate federal law. Those laws require MAF to maintain client confidentiality. The specific legal references are contained in the attached letter from the National Association of Protection and Advocacy Systems and can be explained note fully by MAP's attorney, Andrec Larocc.

Fourth, the qualifier allowing MAP to avoid mandatory disclosure if doing so would "violate provisions of federal or state law" makes no sense. The law is supposed to provide direction to us. As a former navigator of merchant ships, I can tell you that I never read a nautical chart that said: "Go west unless going in that direction would be wrong." It is your obligation as lawmakers to determine what the law is, what our direction should be. It is neither good public policy nor fair to require such a determination on the spur of the moment as each individual case arises, which seens to be implied by the language.

Fifth, these provisions interfere with MAP's independence, and we can only be effective if we are independent. A case that HAP investigates may be abuse or neglect by a DFS employee or may be a case where DFS has refused to act. It might not be in our client's interest to prematurely warn DFS of MAP's strategy or even its involvement.

In the overwhelming number of cases, MAP has and will continue to report to and cooperate with DFS. But for the reasons outlined above, we firmly believe that the provisions requiring MAP to report suspected abuse and neglect to DFS should be removed from the two bills.

Thank you for providing MAP with the opportunity to address our concerns to you. I regret that previous commitments made it impossible for me to express these views personally. If you should have questions that are not adequately addressed by Andree, she or I would be pleased to supplement these remarks in any manner desired.

Sincerely.

Jaok Sands

figurber of the Board of Directors Honians Advocacy Program, Inc.

JS/1

EXHIBIT FAX NO. 2024089520

NAPAS

FEB-08-95 WED 17:48

### National Association of Protection & Advocacy Systems

### Executive Committee

President Surah Wiggins-Mitchell New Jorkey (609) 292-9742

February 8, 1995

Vice President Zena Naiditch Illinois (312) 341-0022

Bob Clark, Chairman House Judiciary Committee State Capitol

Secretary

Helena, Montana

Duncan Wyeth Michigan (517) 373-8193

Dear Chairman Clark and Members of the Committee:

Transurer James Jackson New Mexico (505) 256-3100

The National Association of Protection and Advocacy Systems (NAPAS) wishes to submit this letter to you and the House Judiciary Committee as testimony on HB 366. NAPAS is a voluntary membership organization for the nationwide system of protection and advocacy system agencies (P & As). P & As were established under a number of federal statutes (which, as is discussed below, would be impacted by HB 366) to provide legal representation and related advocacy services on behalf of all persons with disabilities. NAPAS is authorized by the federal agencies which administer these statutes to provide P & As with standards on the implementation of these requirements, as well as related training and technical assistance.

### Regional Officers

Region I Jim Comstock-Galugan (TX) James Jackson (NM) Minureta Thompson (AS)

Region II Julie Bluhm (FL) Ann Murshall (AL) Ronald Lindsey (VI)

Region III Judy Chamberlin (MA) Donna Woodfin (NH) Sarah Wiggins-Mitchell (NJ)

Region IV Mary Reger (KS) Dick Tanner (TN) Cynthia Schloss (MO)

Region V Duncun Wyeth (MI) Cuthy Meadows (IL) Zena Muiditch (IL)

We understand that the Montana Department of Family Services (DFS) is proposing to require the Montana Advocacy Program (MAP) -- the designated P & A for the State of Montana - to report all incidents of suspected abuse or neglect uncovered by the agency to the DFS, "unless disclosure would violate provisions of federal or state law."

We conclude that such a mandatory reporting requirement would conflict with the confidentiality obligations imposed on MAP by the statutes and regulations governing the P & A system; in addition, it would generally interfere with MAP's authority under these laws to investigate and take corrective action with regard to incidents of abuse and neglect. Accordingly, we urge the Legislature not to pass the reporting requirement.

### Al-Large

Stoney Polman (MI) Hikmsh Gardiner (PA) Hurry Sarkisinn (AZ)

### Executive Director

Curtis L. Decker, J.D.

The specific statutory programs that would be affected by this legislation are the following: the Developmental Disabilities Assistance and Bill of Rights (DD) Act (42 U.S.C. 6000 et seq.), the Protection and Advocacy for Individuals with Mental Illness (PAIMI) Act (42 U.S.C. 10801 et seq.), and the Protection and Advocacy for Individual Rights (PAIR) Program under the Rehabilitation Act (29 U.S.C. 794e) (Detailed information describing these statutory programs is contained in an attachment to this letter.)

The three statutory programs (which, individually, serve distinct populations of persons with disabilities), all generally require P & As to strictly maintain the confidentiality of all personal information about persons served by the P & A (including, but not limited to, information contained in client records). This obligation extends to information provided to the P & A concerning persons who may have been subject to abuse or neglect. While there are some very narrow specific exceptions to this confidentiality obligation (e.g., information may be released with the written consent of a client or his or her legal representative), it is clear that the proposed mandatory reporting requirement would, in most cases, violate the obligation.

Further, insofar as the reporting requirement would compel the disclosure of information about an individual communicated to an attorney in confidence, it would lead to violations of the attorney-client privilege.

Moreover, the reporting requirement would improperly interfere with the P & A's primary advocacy duties under the P & A statutes. Under all there of these programs, MAP has two related obligations -- to (1) independently investigate incidents of abuse or neglect involving persons with disabilities, and other violations of their rights; and (2) pursue legal and other appropriate remedies on behalf of persons with disabilities to ensure the enforcement of their constitutional and statutory rights.

The leading cases interpreting the P & A statutes have held that P & A agencies must have unrestricted discretion to independently carry out these mandates. Mississippi Protection and Advocacy System, Inc. v. Cotten, No. J87-0503(L) (S.D. Miss. August 7, 1989), aff'd, 929 F2d 1054 (5th Cir. 1989); Robbins v. Budke, 739 F.Supp. 1479 (D. N.M. 1990). All P & As, including MAP, must have unrestricted discretion to determine, in the interest of a client, whether to conduct a particular investigation independently, and to refrain from making a referral to an outside agency. P & As must be able to control the release of information in a strategic manner: The agency must be able to ensure that the release of information does not compromise the integrity of the investigation, expose vulnerable persons to retaliation, or interfere with

These confidentiality requirements are mandated by the statutes themselves and by their implementing regulations. <u>See</u> 45 CFR 1386.21 (DD Act), 34 CFR 381.34 (PAIR Program), 59 Federal Register 64367, December 14, 1994 (proposed regulations implementing the PAIMI Program).

Federal funding is received by Montana to provide protection and advocacy services for persons with disabilities on condition that the P & A has an effective system implementing the federal mandates discussed above. The court in the <u>Cotten</u> case held that "the state cannot satisfy the requirements of the [DD Act] by establishing a protection and advocacy system which has this authority in theory, but then taking action which prevents the system from exercising that authority."

P. 04

EXHIBIT 18

DATE 2-9-95

HB 3/4

potential legal remedies.3 The mandatory reporting requirement would interfere with all of these authorities.

It might be argued that the proposed legislation would not require MAP to disclose information in a manner which interferes with these federal mandates, inasmuch as the proposal would permit the P & A to refrain from reporting where to do so "would violate provisions of federal or state law." However, as discussed above, in many cases such reporting would clearly violate federal law. Therefore, this exception essentially swallows the rule -- and there is no need establish a statutory reporting requirement.

Moreover, the reporting requirement would place MAP in the untenable position of risking violation of federal confidentiality requirements every time it reported an incident of abuse or neglect to DFS. Conversely, MAP potentially would be subject to prosecution whenever it determined that reporting to DFS would be contrary to its federal obligations. In either case, the burdens placed on MAP would severely undermine its ability to carry out its obligations under the P & A statutes

Thank you very much for considering our concerns. If you have any questions concerning this matter, please do not hesitate to contact me or Gary Gross of my staff.

Sincerely,

Cientos L. Decker Jeg

**Executive Director** 

### Attachment

cc: Administration on Developmental Disabilities, HHS
Center for Mental Health Services, HHS
Rehabilitative Services Administration,
Department of Education

This principle was clarified in a February 8, 1994 opinion letter issued by the Administration on Developmental Disabilities (within the Department of Health and Human Services), which administers the DD Act. That letter states that a P & A cannot be required to disclose to a third party the substance of a report of an incident of abuse or neglect or the basis of the P & A's belief that such an incident has occurred. The agency concluded that "disclosure of such information would compromise the effectiveness and integrity of the investigation and could expose sources and already vulnerable clients to retaliation."

# NAPAS

# National Association of Protection & Advocacy Syste

900 Second St., NE, Suite 211, Washington, DC 20002 (202) 408-9514 FAX: (202) 408-9520 TDD: (202) 408-9521

President Sarah Wiggins-Mitchell New Jersey (609) 292-9742

V. President Zena Naiditch Illinois (312) 341-0022

Secretary Duncan Wyeth Michigan (517) 373-8193

Treasurer James Jackson New Mexico (505) 256-3100

Region I Donna Woodfin New Hampshire

Region II Camille Ayala-Walker Virgin Islands

Region III James Rothrock Virginia

Region IV Mac Brownlee North Carolina

Region V Elizabeth Bauer Michigan

Region VI James Comstock-Galagan Texas

Region VII Cynthia Schloss Missouri

Region VIII Barbara Braun North Dakora

Region IX Kevin Christensen Nevada

Region X Jerry Johnsen Washington

Territories Minareta Thompson American Samoa

At-Large Cathy Costanzo Massachusetts

At-Large Vivianne Hardy-Townes Washington, D.C. STATE PROTECTION AND ADVOCACY SYSTEMS

Protection and Advocacy (P & A) Systems were created by Congress and are mandated to provide legal assistance and related advocacy services to people with disabilities. P & A Systems include: Protection & Advocacy for Persons with Developmental Disabilities; Protection & Advocacy for Individuals with Mental Illness; and most recently, Protection & Advocacy for Individual Rights.

P & A's were initially developed to address public outcry related to the abuse and neglect and lack of programming in state institutions for persons with disabilities.

Protection & Advocacy Systems for Persons with Developmental Disabilities (PADD) were originally established by the Developmental Disabilities Assistance and Bill of Rights Act of 1975 (Public Law 94-103), which mandates that each state and territory establish a protection and advocacy system by October 1, 1977 as a condition for receiving its basic state grant allotment under the Act. Agencies established to provide advocacy services must have the ability to pursue legal, administrative, and other appropriate remedies to protect the rights of individuals with developmental disabilities under federal and state law. The Governor in each state designates the P & A System, and provides assurances that the System is independent of any service provider.

Protection & Advocacy Programs for Individuals with Mental Illness (PAIMI) were established in 1986 with the passage of Public Law 99-319. It is modeled after PADD. The program is mandated to protect the rights of persons with mental illness under federal and state law, and to investigate allegations of abuse and neglect of persons residing in residential care or treatment facilities. The agencies designated to serve as the PADD systems in each state and U.S. territory are responsible for implementing the PAIMI program.

The Protection and Advocacy for Individual Rights (PAIR) program was authorized by Congress under the Rehabilitation Act of 1978, but no funds were appropriated for this program until fiscal year 1991. Under PAIR, P & A's have authority to pursue legal, administrative and other appropriate remedies for all persons with disabilities who are not elgible for services under the PADD or PAIMI programs. In fiscal year 1994, Congress appropriated \$5.5 million, hitting the trigger for formula grant status (\$100,000 for states, \$50,000 for territories). As a result, each PADD will now receive funds to operate a PAIR.

EXHIBIT 18

DATE 2-9-95

HB 366

### P & A Activities

### P & A activities may include:

- (1) investigating, negotiating or mediating solutions to problems expressed by persons eligible for P & A services;
- (2) providing information and technical assistance to individuals, attorneys, governmental agencies, service providers and other advocacy organizations;
- (3) providing legal counsel and litigation services to eligible persons and groups (who satisfy the established priorities of the P & A for the provision of services); and
- (4) providing education and training for staff, governing boards and advisory councils, volunteers, service delivery professionals, constituency groups, and the community.

In addition, P & A's interact with elected and appointed officials to share information which will assist policy makers in making legislative and administrative changes which benefit persons with disabilities.

# HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES VISITORS REGISTER

JUDICIARY		d. 9.	75
BILL NO. HB 429 SPONSOR(S	, Rep. Molnar		
PLEASE PRINT	PLEASE PRINT	LEASE	PRIN
NAME AND ADDRESS	REPRESENTING	Support	Oppose
Mary Ellerd	MOTOA		<b>L</b>
Charle Class	W. Newypoper Hosse	~	
Wike Caller	Lee Hewsprom JMost	1	
Kuf J. Mel	Jus. Prob. Effice		

PLEASE LEAVE PREPARED TESTIMONY WITH SECRETARY. WITNESS STATEMENT FORMS ARE AVAILABLE IF YOU CARE TO SUBMIT WRITTEN TESTIMONY.

HR:1993

wp:vissbcom.man

# HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES VISITORS REGISTER

	ISITORS REGISTER		
JUDICIARY	COMMITTEE DATE_	2.9.9	5
BILL NO. HB 371 SPONSOR (S	Rep. Smith		
and the second s	PLEASE PRINT	EEASE:	PRINT
NAME AND ADDRESS	REPRESENTING	Support	0ppose
Bruce Seeman,	State File Webulal		
Roy C. Brock	Powell CTY Sheriff Dept		
Hours I Chap	DILLON POLICE DEPT		

PLEASE LEAVE PREPARED TESTIMONY WITH SECRETARY. WITNESS STATEMENT FORMS ARE AVAILABLE IF YOU CARE TO SUBMIT WRITTEN TESTIMONY.

HR:1993

wp:vissbcom.man

# HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES VISITORS REGISTER

		· ·	JUDICIARY	<del>_</del>	COMMITTEE	DATE 2 9-95
BILL	NO. HB	186	_ sponsor(s)_	Rep.	Martine	-7

PPEASE PRINT's

# PLEASE PRINT

# \*PLEASE PRINT

	•		The second secon
NAME AND ADDRESS	REPRESENTING	Support	Oppose
Laure Kaitrik	Christian Coat Aran of My		
Monte Beck	self		
Russell B Hill			
MARY ALICE COOK	ADV for MTS CHILDREN	V	
Mary Callagher	MAP		7
Andree larose	Montava Advocacy Program		
·			

PLEASE LEAVE PREPARED TESTIMONY WITH SECRETARY. WITNESS STATEMENT FORMS ARE AVAILABLE IF YOU CARE TO SUBMIT WRITTEN TESTIMONY.

HR:1993

wp:vissbcom.man

# HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES VISITORS REGISTER

	JUI	DICIARY		COMMITTEE	DATE 2.9.95	
BILL NO. 1	B 366	SPONSOR(S)	Rep.	Kasten	<del>-</del>	

PLEASE PRINT

# PLEASE PRINT

# PLEASE PRIN

NAME AND ADDRESS	REPRESENTING	Support	Oppose
Lawre Kastal	Charter Control of the		
Tanla Crumb	No assilation	<b>₩</b>	
Rhoda Miller	Regional Services / MXIDS ADV. for MT'S	v'	
MARY ALICE COOK	ADV. POR MT'S  CHILDREN	V	
Bob Andensin	DCHS		
mary Gallagher	MAP	V	
Andrée Laron	Montana Advocacy Grogram	· ·	
	/ /		

PLEASE LEAVE PREPARED TESTIMONY WITH SECRETARY. WITNESS STATEMENT FORM:
ARE AVAILABLE IF YOU CARE TO SUBMIT WRITTEN TESTIMONY.

HR:1993

wp:vissbcom.man